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Reliance Home Finance Limited

To,
The Members,
Reliance Home Finance Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
Reliance Home Finance Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for 
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013  
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the  financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are 
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial 

statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit 
also includes evaluating the  appropriateness  of the accounting  
policies  used  and  the  reasonableness  of  the accounting 
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the  financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its profit and 
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, we give in the “Annexure A“, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure A, and as required
by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors as on March 31, 2017 taken  on  record
by  the  Board  of  Directors,  none  of  the  directors  is
disqualified  as  on March 31, 2017 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statement
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statement

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion 
and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

i) the Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements - Refer Note No. 39 (ii) to the financial
statements.

ii) The Company has made adequate provision for the
year ended March 31, 2017, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts Refer Note No. 33(4)
(iii) to the financial statements;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company; and

iv) The Company had provided requisite disclosures
in its financial statements as to holdings as well as
dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period
from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 and
these are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company. Refer Note No.40 to the
financial statements.

For Chaturvedi & Shah	
Chartered Accountants	
Firm’s Registration No:101720W	

Lalit R. Mhalsekar 	
Partner	
Membership No: 103418	
Mumbai	
Dated : April 24, 2017	
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

(Referred to in our report of even date)
(i)	 In respect of its fixed assets:

a. The Company has maintained proper records,
showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of its fixed assets.

b. The Company has a program of physical verification
of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets has been
verified during the year and no discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

c. According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds
of immovable properties are held in the name of
Company.

(ii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is registered as a 
housing finance company with the National Housing Bank. 
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. 
Thus, paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

(iii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions of clauses (iii)(a), (iii)(b) 
and (iii)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, during the year under audit, 
neither the Company has given any loan nor provides any 
guarantee or security to its director or any other person, 
in whom director is interested. Therefore, the provisions of 
the Clause 3 (iv) of the said order are not applicable to 
the Company. As the Company is registered as a housing 
finance company with the National Housing Bank, thus 
the provision of Section 186 except sub-section (1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the 
Company. In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, during the year, the 
Company has not made any investments through more 
than two layers of investment companies as mentioned 
in of subsection 1 of section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

(v)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposit from the public and hence directives issued 
by the National Housing Bank under the Housing Finance 
Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 and the provisions 
of Sections 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there 
under are not applicable. During the year under audit, 
no order has been passed by the Company Law Board 
or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of 
India or National Housing Bank or  any Court or any other 
Tribunal for whether the same has been complied with or 
not.

(vi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Central Government has not specified for maintenance 
of cost records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of activities carried 
on by the Company. Hence the provisions of clause 3 (vi) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii)	 In respect of statutory dues:
a) According to the information and explanations

given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company
has generally been regular in depositing with

appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
dues including provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 
cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable, 
except in case of and professional tax in which 
case there are few delays in payment of said dues. 
Further, there are no undisputed amounts payable 
outstanding as at March 31, 2017 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise and value added tax which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii)	 Based on our audit procedures and the information and 
explanations given by management, we are of the opinion 
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
borrowing to a financial institution, bank, Government or 
dues to debenture holders as at March 31, 2017.

(ix)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not raised 
any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer during the year under audit. The Company has raised 
moneys through debt instruments and term loans during 
the year.  Fund raised through debentures and term loans 
by the Company have been applied for the purpose 
for which they were raised except in case where term 
loans amounting to `110 crore have been taken which 
were lying in bank accounts at the year end, and were 
subsequently utilized for the purpose for which loans have 
been taken.

(x)	 During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no fraud on or by the Company or any fraud on the 
Company by its officers or employees was noticed or 
reported during the year, except in case of a fraud on the 
Company for housing loans amounting to ` 1.95 crore, 
which was identified by management and reported to the 
NHB. As at March 31, 2017, ̀  1.95 crore was written off 
by the Company in the statement of profit and loss. 

(xi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, during the year the Company 
has paid managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandate by the provisions of Section 
197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii)	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

(xiii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, all transactions with related 
parties are in accordance with the provisions of Section 
177 & Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
details of related party transactions have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required under Accounting 
Standard 18, Related Party Disclosures specified under 
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(xiv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, during the year under audit, 
the Company has not made any preferential allotment 
or private placement of fully or partly convertible 
debentures. During the year the Company has issued 
equity shares on preferential basis to its holding company 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statement
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statement

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statement

(Referred to in our report of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Reliance Home Finance Limited (“the Company”) 
as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit 
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of 
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.
For Chaturvedi & Shah	
Chartered Accountants	
Firm’s Registration No:101720W	
Lalit R. Mhalsekar 	
Partner	
Membership No: 103418	
Mumbai	
Dated : April 24, 2017

as per the requirements of Section 42 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act and 
the amount raised have been used for the purposes for 
which the funds were raised. 

(xv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not entered 
any non-cash transactions with directors and persons 
connected with them. Hence the provisions of clause 3 
(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us the Company is required to be 
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. The Company has registered as a housing 
finance company with the National Housing Bank. 

For Chaturvedi & Shah 
Chartered Accountants	
Firm’s Registration No:101720W	

Lalit R. Mhalsekar 	
Partner	
Membership No: 103418	
Mumbai	
Dated : April 24, 2017
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

(` in crore)
Particulars Note 

No.
As at

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:

(1)	 Shareholders’ funds
(a)	 Share capital 3  115.82  65.82 
(b)	 Share capital suspense [Refer Note No. 42 (ii)]  31.04  -   
(c)	 Reserves and Surplus 4  982.73  554.30 

(2)	 Non-current liabilities
(a)	 Long-term borrowings 5  7,285.88  4,619.00 
(b)	 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6  -    8.03 
(c)	 Other non-current liabilities 7  5.79  2.83 
(d)	 Long-term provisions 8  51.22  31.09 

(3)	 Current liabilities
(a)	 Short-term borrowings 9  1,003.68  768.30 
(b)	 Trade payables 10 

- Micro, Medium and Small enterprises  -    -   
- Due to Others  4.79  1.92 

(c)	 Other current liabilities 11  1,818.00  1,636.12 
(d)	 Short-term provisions 12  5.94  6.18 

TOTAL  11,304.89  7,693.59 

II ASSETS:
(1)	 Non-current assets

(a)	 Property, Plant & Equipment 13
(i)	 Tangible assets  41.94  44.28 
(ii)	 Intangible assets  25.74  0.03 

(b)	 Non-current investments 14  53.37  6.94 
(c)	 Deferred tax Asset (Net) 6  123.03  -   
(d)	 Long-term loans and advances 15  9,081.95  5,954.31 
(e)	 Other non-current assets 16  211.66  57.11 

(2)	 Current assets
(a)	 Current investments 17  454.38  73.48 
(b)	 Trade receivables 18  30.59  -   
(c)	 Cash and bank balances 19  252.49  720.12 
(d)	 Short-term loans and advances 20  947.05  785.17 
(e)	 Other current assets 21  82.69  52.15 

TOTAL  11,304.89  7,693.59 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements ‘1-49’

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 101720W Directors

Padmanabh Vora
Deena Mehta 
Gautam Doshi 
Amit Bapna

Lalit R. Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership No: 103418

Executive Director & CEO
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Ravindra Sudhalkar 
Sandip Parikh
Parul Jain

Mumbai
Dated: April 24, 2017

Mumbai
Dated: April 24, 2017

{
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 101720W Directors

Padmanabh Vora
Deena Mehta 
Gautam Doshi 
Amit Bapna

Lalit R. Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership No: 103418

Executive Director & CEO
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Ravindra Sudhalkar 
Sandip Parikh
Parul Jain

Mumbai
Dated: April 24, 2017

Mumbai
Dated: April 24, 2017

{

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

(` in crore)

Particulars Note 
No.

2016-17 2015-16

REVENUE

I Revenue from operations 22  1,078.57  796.04 

II Other income 23  66.11  18.99 

III TOTAL REVENUE (I+II)  1,144.68  815.03 

EXPENSES

Employee benefits expense 24  93.70  71.02 

Finance cost 25  748.53  535.93 

Depreciation and amortisation 13  7.06  0.72 

Other expenses 26  157.59  70.66 

IV TOTAL EXPENSES  1,006.88  678.33 

V PROFIT BEFORE TAX (III-IV)  137.80  136.70 

VI TAX EXPENSE

Current Tax (Refer Note No. 45)  -    51.67 

(Reversal)/ Income tax for Earlier Year  (9.57)  -   

Deferred Tax /(Credit)  (25.22)  (1.72)

VII PROFIT AFTER TAX (V-VI)  172.59  86.75 

VIII EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE 
(Face value of ` 10 each fully paid-up)

39

Basic & Diluted  20.45  13.18 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements ‘1-49’
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

(` in crore)

Paticulars 2016-17 2015-16

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Net Profit Before Tax  137.80  136.70 

Adjusted for

Depreciation and Amortisation  7.06  0.72 

Provision for Standard Debts  21.37  7.71 

Provision for NPA & Doubtful Debts  10.69  4.40 

Provision for Repossessed Asset  15.75  -   

Bad Debts Written Off  6.04  3.76 

Sundry Balances Written Off  0.61 -

Provision for Diminution in the value of Debentures  (240.54)  -   

Loss on Sale of Debentures  209.94  -   

Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset  0.18  -   

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Investments  (33.86)  (18.95)

Discount on Commercial Papers  103.36  59.87 

Amortised DSA Commission  13.37  10.60 

Amortised Brokerage Commission  1.94  1.47 

Amortised Guarantee Commission  1.33  1.10 

Amortised Public Issue Expenses  1.70  -   

Interest Expenses & Processing Charges  643.23  474.59 

Provision for Leave encashment  0.02  0.24 

Provision for Gratuity  0.95  1.30 

Brokerage Commission on Property Solution  (2.14)  (5.58)

Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes  898.80  677.93 

Adjusted for

Proceeds/(Repayments) from issue of Commercial Papers (Net)  356.50  (285.49)

Repayments of Long term Borrowing  (1,668.57)  (796.31)

Proceeds from Long term Borrowing  4,563.27  2,969.93 

Proceeds/(Repayments) from Short Term Borrowing (Net)  (224.47)  178.40 

Trade Receivable & Loans and advances  (3,444.05)  (1,711.04)

Trade Payables and Liabilities  (135.71)  (100.26)

Other Liabilities and Provisions  (2.25)  -   

Cash generated from operations  343.52  933.16 

Interest & Processing Charges Paid  (547.84)  (468.86)

Taxes Paid (Net off Income Tax Refund)  (25.20)  (30.87)

Net cash from / (used in) operating activities  (229.52)  433.43 

F - 8



Reliance Home Finance Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

(` in crore)

Paticulars 2016-17 2015-16

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Proceed from /(Investments) in Fixed Deposits  (34.73)  (10.03)

Purchase of Fixed Asset  (1.03)  -   

Sale of Fixed Asset  3.56  -   

Sale/(Purchase) of Current Investments (Net)  (416.14)  18.95 

Purchase of Non Current Investments  (53.49)  -   

Sale of Non Current Investments  106.76  (80.42)

Net Cash from / (used in) investing activities  (395.07)  (71.50)

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Issue of Equity Share Capital including Securities Premium  200.00  -   

Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities  200.00  -   

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C)  (424.59)  361.93 

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents  677.08  315.15 

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents  252.49  677.08 

Notes:

1. The Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.

The figures for current year includes figures of Credit Business of India Debt Management Private Limited (IDMPL) which is
demerged with the Company with effect from March 31, 2016 i.e. the Appointed Date and therefore to that extent not strictly
comparable to that of previous year’s figures.

2. The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with “Indirect Method” as prescribed in Accounting Standard- 3
(AS-3) on “Cash Flow Statements” notified by the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 101720W Directors

Padmanabh Vora
Deena Mehta 
Gautam Doshi 
Amit Bapna

Lalit R. Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership No: 103418

Executive Director & CEO
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Ravindra Sudhalkar 
Sandip Parikh
Parul Jain

Mumbai
Dated: April 24, 2017

Mumbai
Dated: April 24, 2017
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

1	 Background
Reliance Home Finance Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on June 5, 2008 with Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra 
at Mumbai. The Company is principally engaged in housing finance business and registered with National Housing Bank (‘NHB’) 
as a housing finance company (HFC), without accepting public deposits, as defined under section 29A of the National Housing 
Bank Act, 1987. 

2	 Significant Accounting Policies
a	 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of 
accounting. They are in confirmity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India (‘GAAP’), and comply with 
the Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended by the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”). These financial statements are 
presented in Indian rupees rounded in crore upto two decimal, except otherwise stated.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Act. Based on the nature of the services and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities.
The Company complies in all material respects, with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, asset classification 
and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts and other matters, specified in the directions issued by the National Housing 
Bank (‘NHB’) in terms of “Master Circular - The Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010” vide National Housing 
Bank (‘NHB’) Notification No. NHB(ND)/DRS/REG/MC-01/2016 dated July 1, 2016 and Housing Finance Companies - 
Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 vide National Housing Bank (‘NHB’) Notification No. NHB.
HFC.CG-DIR.1/ MD&CEO/ 2016, as applicable to the Company.

b	 Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized 
in the period in which the results are known/materialised.

c	 Revenue Recognition
i) Interest income:

Repayment of housing loans is generally by way of Equated Monthly Installments (EMI) comprising of principal and
interest. Necessary appropriation is made out of these EMI collections to principal and interest.  EMIs commence
generally once the entire loan is disbursed. Pending  commencement of EMIs, pre-EMI interest is payable on every
month. Interest on loans is computed either on an annual rest, half yearly rest, quarterly rest or on a monthly rest basis
on the principal outstanding at the beginning of the relevant period.
Interest income is allocated over the contractual term of loan by applying the committed interest rate to the outstanding 
amount of the loan. Interest income on performing assets is recognized on accrual basis and on non- performing
assets on realization basis as per guidelines prescribed by the National Housing Bank.
Fees, charges and additional interest income on delayed EMI/Pre-EMI are recognized on receipt basis.

ii) Processing Fee Income
Loan processing fee income is accounted for upfront as and when it becomes due.

iii) Income from assignment / securitization
In case of assignment / securitization of loans, the assets are derecognized when all the rights, title, future receivables
and interest thereof along with all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the purchasers of assigned/
securtised loans. The profit if any, as reduced by the estimated provision for loss/expenses and incidental expenses
related to the transaction, is recognised as gain or loss arising on assignment / securitization.

iv) Servicing Fee Income
Servicing fees received is accounted for based on the underlying deal structure of the transaction as per the agreement.

v) Brokerage, Commission and Other Income
Brokerage, Commission and other income is recognized when there is no significant uncertainty as to determination
and realization.

vi) Income from Investments
Profit / (Loss) earned from sale of securities is recognised on trade date basis.

vii) Dividend Income
Dividend Income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2017
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viii) Foreclosure & Other Operating Income
Foreclosure & Other Operating Charges i.e. Bounce Charges, Loan Reschedulement Charges are accounted as an when
received.

ix) Infrastructure Cost Recovery
Infrastructure Cost Recovery income towards support services is accounted as and when it becomes due on contractual 
terms with the parties.

d	 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and Impairment loss, if any. 
The Company has used the cost model as measurement bases for determining the gross carrying amount. Cost includes 
acquisition cost which is directly attributable to bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

e	 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognised where it is probable that the future economic benefit attributable to the assets will flow 
to the Company and its cost can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated 
amortisation.

f	 Depreciation/Amortisation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided in accordance with the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies 
Act, 2013. Tangible assets are depreciated on straight line basis method over the useful life of assets, as prescribed in Part 
C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives for the different types of assets are :

Tangible Assets

(i)	 Buildings - 60 years

(ii)	 Office Equipments - 5 years

(iii)	 Data Processing Machineries - 3 years

Intangible Assets

(i) 	 Computer software which are amortised on straight line basis over the useful life of the assets up to a maximum of 
five years commencing from the month in which such assets is first installed or utilised.

(ii) 	 Goodwill pursuant to the scheme of arrangement, which is amortised on straight line basis over the tenure of 5 years 

g	 Loan origination / acquisition cost

All direct cost incurred for the loan origination is amortised over the tenure of the loan.

h	 Investments

Investments are classified into current investments and long-term investments. In accordance with the Guidelines issued 
by National Housing Bank (NHB), current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value and long term investments 
are carried at cost. However, provision is made to recognize decline other than temporary in the carrying amount of long 
term investments. Unquoted investments in the units of Mutual Funds in nature of current investment are valued at lower 
of cost or Net Asset Value declared by Mutual Funds in respect of each particular scheme.

i	 Discount on Commercial Papers

The difference between the acquisition cost and the redemption value of commercial papers is apportioned on time basis 
and recognized as discount expense.

j	 Asset Repossessed under SARFAESI Act

Asset Repossessed under SARFAESI Act against the settlement of loans are carried in the balance sheet at outstanding  
loan amount net off Provision thereon. The classification and provision is based on the underlying Days Past Due (DPD) of 
these loans.

k	 Cash & Cash Equivalents

In the cashflow statements, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, balance in banks and fixed deposits without 
lien with original maturities of three months or less.

l	 Provision for Standard Assets, Non Performing Assets (NPA) & Doubtful Debts

Provisions on Standard Assets, Non Performing Assets (NPA) & Doubtful Debts are made in accordance with the Prudential 
Norms as per Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010.

m	 Securitised Assets

Derecognition of Securitised assets in the books of the Company, recognition of gain or loss arising on Securitisation 
and accounting for credit enhancement provided by the Company is based on the Guidance Note on Accounting for 
Securitisation issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2017
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n	 Security of loans given

Housing loans / loans against property granted are secured by equitable registered mortgage of property and / or 
undertaking to create a security. Other Secured loans are secured against hypothecation of respective assets.

o Market Linked Debentures

The Company has issued certain market linked non-convertible debentures (‘MLD’), the rate of interest which is linked to
performance of specified indices over the period of the debentures. The Company hedges its interest rate risk on MLD by
taking positions in future & options based on specified indices. Any gain/loss on these hedge positions are netted against
with interest expense on MLD and resultant ‘net loss’ is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss immediately, however
‘net gain’ if any, is ignored.

p	 Employee Benefits

i) Provident fund

Contributions payable to the recognized provident fund, which is a defined contribution scheme, are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii) Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and
the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using
the Projected unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee
benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on
Government securities as on the balance sheet date.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii) Leave Encashment

Leave encashment which is a defined benefit, is accrued for based on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date
carried out by an independent actuary.

The employees of the Company are entitled for compensated absence. The employees can carry forward a portion of
the unutilised accrued leave balance and utilise it in future periods. The Company records an obligation for compensated 
absences in the period in which the employee renders the service that increases the entitlement. The Company
measures the expected cost of compensated absence as the amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date.

iv) Phantom Stock Option

As a long term incentive plan to employees, the Company has initiated Phantom Stock Option plan which are
cash settlement rights where the employees are entitled to get cash compensation based on formula linked to
fair market value of shares upon exercise of phantom stock option over notional or hypothetical shares, whereby
instead of becoming entitled to buy the actual shares on vesting, they become entitled to cash payment equivalent
to appreciation in the value over defined base price of share. The present value of the obligation under such plan is
determined based on actuarial valuation at the year end and any actuarial gains/ losses are charged to statement of
profit and loss as applicable.

q	 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs, which are directly attributable to the acquisition / construction of fixed assets, till the time such assets are 
ready for intended use, are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the year in which they are incurred. Brokerage costs directly attributable to a borrowing are expensed over the tenure of 
the borrowing.

r	 Guarantee Fees

Mortgage guarantee fees, which are directly attributable to the loans guaranteed are expensed based on the principal 
outstanding at the end of the period.

s	 Expenses related to Public issue of Non Convertible Debenture (NCD)

Expenses related to Public issue of NCD, which are directly attributable to the particular series of NCD are expensed based 
on tenure of respective series. The expenses which are not directly attributable to the particular series of NCD are expensed 
based on weighted average tenure of NCD issued.

Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2017
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t	 Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) attributable to the equity shareholders for the 
period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period. The number of shares 
used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving 
earnings per share, and also the number of equity shares, which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive 
potential shares. In computing dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that reduce profit 
/ (loss) per share are included.

u	 Provision for Current Tax and Deferred Tax

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit entitlement is recognised where there is convincing evidence that the 
same can be realised in future.

The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to 
the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed 
depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty 
of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written 
up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

v	 Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, if such 
condition exists an asset is treated as impaired, when carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment 
loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount 
is treated as impaired, when carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable amount.

w	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that 
there will be outflow of resources and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. A disclosure 
for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but 
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 
longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 
Contingent assets are not recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

(` in crore)

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

3 Share capital

(a)	 Authorised:

55,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each
(March 31, 2016: 7,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each)

 550.00  75.00 

5,00,00,000 Preference Shares of ` 10 each
(March 31, 2016: 5,00,00,000 Preference Shares of ` 10 each)

 50.00  50.00 

 600.00  125.00 

Notes :
i) In terms of the approval of the shareholders obtained at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on

October 26, 2016 the Company has reclassified its Authorised Share Capital from ̀  125 crore (7,50,00,000 Equity Shares 
of ` 10 each and 5,00,00,000 Preference Share of ` 10 each) to ` 125 crore (9,30,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each 
and 3,20,00,000 Preference Share of ` 10 each).

ii) In terms of the approval of the shareholders obtained at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on
December 6, 2016 the Company has further reclassified its Authorised Share Capital from ` 125 crore (9,30,00,000 
Equity Shares of ` 10 each and 3,20,00,000 Preference Share of ` 10 each) to ` 125 crore (12,50,00,000 Equity 
Shares of ` 10 each).

iii) In terms of the approval of the shareholders obtained at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on
January 20, 2017 the Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital from ` 125 crore (12,50,00,000 Equity 
Shares of ` 10 each ) to ` 600 crore (55,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each and 5,00,00,000 Preference Shares of  
` 10 each).

Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2017

(` in crore)

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

(b)	 Issued, subscribed & Fully paid-up

11,58,20,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each 
(March 31, 2016: 6,58,20,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each)

 115.82  65.82 

 115.82  65.82 

(c)	 Par Value per Share  Amount in `  Amount in `

	 Equity  10  10 

(d)	 Reconciliation of issued, subscribed and fully paid-up Share Capital

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
 No. of Shares Amount  

(` in crore)  
 No. of Shares Amount  

(` in crore)  
Equity Shares
Opening Balance  6,58,20,000  65.82  6,58,20,000  65.82 
Addition during the year  5,00,00,000  50.00  -    -   
Reduction during the year  -    -    -    -   
Closing Balance 11,58,20,000  115.82  6,58,20,000  65.82 

(e)	 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions:

1	 Voting Rights : 

		 The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one 
vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in 
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

For the year ended March 31, 2017, the dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is ` 0.50 (March 31, 2016  
` Nil), which is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. (Refer Note  
No. 46).

(f)	 Shares held by holding company i.e. Reliance Capital Limited including shares jointly held

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
% No. of Shares Amount

(` in crore)
No. of Shares Amount

(` in crore)
Equity shares
Reliance Capital Limited 100%  11,58,20,000  115.82  6,58,20,000  65.82 
Total 100%  11,58,20,000  115.82  6,58,20,000  65.82 

(Out of the above equity shares, 20 equity shares (Previous year 20 equity shares) are jointly held by Reliance Capital 
Limited and its nominees.)

(g)	 Out of the above equity shares 3,29,10,000 equity shares (Previous Year 3,29,10,000 equity shares) were allotted as fully 
paid-up bonus shares to its existing equity shareholders in the financial year 2012-13.

(` in crore)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

4 Reserves and surplus

a) Statutory Reserve

(As per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987)

Special Reserve Fund #

As per Last Balance sheet  59.93  42.58 

Add: Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss  34.52  17.35 

 94.45  59.93 
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Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2017

(` in crore)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

b) Securities Premium Account

As Per Last Balance Sheet  255.18  255.18 

Add: Premium on Equity Shares  150.00  -   

 405.18  255.18 

c) Debenture Redemption Reserve # #

As Per Last Balance Sheet  -  - 

Add: Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss  48.52  - 

 48.52  -   

d) Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss

As Per Last Balance Sheet  239.19  169.78 

Add: Deferred Tax Asset created pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement
with India Debt Management Private Limited (Refer Note No. 42 (iv)
& (vi))

 105.85  -   

Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit & Loss  172.59  86.76 

Less : Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve  48.52  -   

Less : Transfer to Special Reserve Fund  34.52  17.35 

 434.59  239.19 

 982.73  554.30 

#		 The special reserve created as per Section 29 C of the NHB Act, 1987, qualifies for deduction as specified u/s 36 (1) 
(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and accordingly Company has been availing tax benefits for such transfers. (Refer Note 
No. 33 (2))

## 		 Created pursuant to Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014

5 Long-term borrowings

Non convertible debentures

Secured - (Refer Note No. 29 & 37)

		  Others  3,671.75  491.56 

		  Related party  40.00  -   

 3,711.75  491.56 

Unsecured  (Subordinated Tier II Series)

		  Others  736.71  273.00 

		  Related party  37.00  -   

 773.71  273.00 

Term loans from banks / financial institutions

Secured (Refer Note No. 30)  2,800.42  3,854.44 

 7,285.88  4,619.00 

6 Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)

Deferred tax Assets/(Liability) disclosed in the Balance Sheet comprises 
the following :

(a)	Deferred Tax Asset

Disallowance under the Income Tax Act, 1961  3.71  0.61 

Carried forward Losses under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(Refer Note No. 42 & 45)

 114.84  -   

Provision for NPA/Diminution in the value of Assets  34.05  17.61 

Total (a)  152.60  18.22 
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(` in crore)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

(b)	Deferred Tax Liability
Related to Fixed Assets  2.76  1.79 
Unamortised Expenditure  12.96  9.27 
Special Reserve Fund  13.85  15.19 

Total (b)  29.57  26.25 
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) (a) - (b)  123.03  (8.03)

7 Other non-current liabilities
a) Collateral deposit from customers  0.05  -   
b) Interest accrued and not due on borrowings  5.74  2.83 

 5.79  2.83 

8 Long-term provisions
a) Provision for Employees Benefits (Refer Note No. 35)

-Leave encashment  0.53  0.52 
b) Provision for Standard Assets  50.69  30.57 

 51.22  31.09 

9 Short-term borrowings
a) From Banks

Cash Credit facilities - Secured (Refer Note 1 below)  50.00  274.48 
b) From Others

Commercial Papers - Unsecured  (Refer Note 2 below)  953.68  493.82 
 1,003.68  768.30 

Notes:
1. Cash credit facilities from banks referred above are secured as follows :

a. Cash Credit facility of ` Nil (Previous year ` 125 crore), secured by pari passu first charge in favor of the lender on all
the book debts, outstanding moneys, receivable claims of the Company, except for those book debts/receivables to be
charged in favor of National Housing Bank for refinance to be availed, if any, from them, against security not exceeding
` Nil (Previous year ` 137.75 crore).

b. Cash Credit facility of ` 50 crore (Previous year ` 49.97 crore), secured by pari passu first charge in favor of the lender on all
the standard book debts, outstanding moneys, receivable claims of the Company, except for those book debts/receivables
to be charged in favor of National Housing Bank for refinance to be availed, if any, from them, against security not exceeding
` 55.02 crore (Previous year ` 54.97 crore).

c. Cash Credit facility of ` Nil (Previous year ` 99.50 crore), secured by hypothecation of book-debts/receivables (standard
only) of the Company on pari-passu basis with other secured lenders, against security not exceeding ` Nil (Previous year
` 110 crore).

2. In respect of Commercial Papers referred above, maximum face value amount outstanding during the year was ` 2,225 crore
(Previous year ` 1,170 crore).

(` in crore)
Particulars As at

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016
10 Trade payables

Due to Micro, Medium & Small Enterprises  -    -   
Due to Others  4.64  1.92 
Due to Related Party (Refer Note No.37)  0.15  -   

 4.79  1.92 
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(` in crore)
Particulars As at

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016
Note:
Disclosure of amounts payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” 
is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said 
Act. There are no overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance 
Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there 
is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payments made during the year or brought forward from 
previous years.

11 Other current liabilities

a) Current maturities of long term debts

(i)    Non convertible Debentures  (Refer Note No. 29 & 37)

- Secured    

	Others  121.63  44.72 

Related Party  0.50  -   

 122.13  44.72 

(ii)    Term Loans from Banks/Financial Institutions   

           - Secured  (Refer Note No. 30)  1,266.68  1,116.27 

b) Interest accrued and not due on borrowings  121.61  29.12 

c) Advance from Customers  30.68  34.40 

d) Payable under Securitisation / Assignment (Net)  48.30  19.48 

e) Temporary Book Overdraft #  187.52  355.40 

f) Other Payables # #  41.08  36.19 

g) Collateral Deposit from Customers  -    0.54 

 1,818.00  1,636.12 

Notes:
#	 Temporary Book Overdraft of ` 187.52 crore (Previous Year ` 355.40 crore), represents cheques issued towards  

disbursements to borrowers for ` 187.50 crore (Previous Year ` 353.94 crore) and cheques issued for payment of expenses 
of ` 0.02 crore (Previous Year ` 1.46 crore), but not encashed as at March 31, 2017.

## Other Payables includes TDS, statutory payments and other liabilities.   

12 Short-term provisions

a) Provision for Employees Benefits  (Refer Note No. 35)

Leave encashment  0.01  0.01 

Gratuity  -    1.30 

b) Provision for Standard Assets  5.93  4.67 

c) Income Tax Provision [Net Off TDS & Advance Tax ` Nil
(Previous Year ` 132.62 crore)]

 -    0.20 

 5.94  6.18 
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

(` in crore)
Face Value / 
Issue Price `

Quantity Value
As at

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016
As at

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016
14. Non-current investments

Trade Investments
(a) 	 Equity Shares valued at cost unless stated otherwise 

Unquoted, fully paid-up
S Kumars Nationwide Limited     10    1 000  -  *  -   
Meta Copper & Alloys Ltd.     10    10 000  -  0.01  -   

 0.01  -   
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments  0.01  -   

 -    -   
* ` 10,000

(b) 	 Pass Through Certificates (‘PTC’) valued at cost unless 
stated otherwise 
Unquoted, fully paid-up
Cabaletta IFMR Capital 2015 -Series -A2 PTC 18 Dec.15  -   1 84 008  -    1.12 
Hysminai IFMR Capital 2015 - Series -A2 PTC 30 Oct.15  -   9 93 370  -    0.40 
IFMR Capital Mosec Glaucus 2015 - Series -A2 PTC 01 
Sep.15

 -   18 54 181  -    1.12 

IFMR Capital Mosec Vulcan 2015 - Series A2 PTC 30 
Sep.15

 -   5 93 180  -    1.23 

Libertas IFMR Capital 2015 - Series A2 PTC 30 Nov. 15  -  1 52 39 096  -    1.53 
Lucina IFMR Capital 2015 - Series -A2 PTC 30 Nov.15  -   2 37 936  -    0.95 
Manto IFMR Capital 2015 - Series -A2 PTC 19 Nov. 15  -   31 98 234  -    0.32 
Sol IFMR Capital 2015 -Series -A2 PTC 30 Oct. 15  -    10 430  -    0.27 

 -  6.94 
(c) 	 Security Receipts valued at cost unless stated otherwise 

Unquoted, fully paid-up
Suraksha ARC - 004 Trust -22 Dec. 2016    5 100  -  0.51  -   
Suraksha ARC - 005 Trust -22 Dec. 2016    7 650  -  0.77  -   
RHF Indian Receivable Trust- I - 30 Sep.2016  1  -  0.88  -   
RHF Indian Receivable Trust  II - 24 Mar. 2017  1  -  1.21  -   

 3.37  -   
(d)	 Others -Unit of Venture Fund valued at cost unless 

stated otherwise
Quoted *, fully paid-up
IFMR Impact Long Term Multi Asset Class Fund  100,000    5 000  50.00  -   

 50.00  -   
 53.37  6.94 

Notes:
As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016

Book Value Market value Book Value Market value
1. The aggregate value of investments:

Quoted  50.00  51.52  -    -   
Unquoted  3.37  -    6.94  -   
Total  53.37  51.52  6.94  -   

2. The aggregate Provision for diminution in the value of investments:
Quoted  -    -   
Unquoted  0.01  -   
Total  0.01  -   

3. Basis of Valuation at cost less provision for 
diminution in the value of 

Investments

at cost less provision for 
diminution in the value of 

Investments
4.	 *for units of Fund net assets value 

(NAV) is taken as Market Value. 

Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2017
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

(` in crore)
As at

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016
15 Long-term loans and advances

(a)	 Capital advances  16.28  -   
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

(b)	 Security deposits  0.03  0.05 
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

(c)	 Loans
i) (Secured, Considered Good)

Housing loans :
Individuals   4,558.29  3,312.98 
Others  1,446.85  942.58 
Officer of the Company  0.11  1.27 
(Refer Note No.37)  6,005.25  4,256.83 
Commercial loans 
-	 Secured, considered good   2,902.30  1,646.80 
-	 Unsecured, considered good   60.00  - 

(ii) 	 (Secured, Considered Doubtful) 
Housing loans : 
Individuals   38.55  41.01 
Others  3.06  1.13 

 41.61  42.14 
       Less: Provision for NPA & Doubtful Debts  8.55  10.25 

33.06 31.89
       Commercial loans  20.08  17.78 
       Less: Provision for NPA & Doubtful Debts  13.32  3.54 

 6.76  14.24 
(d)	 Installments Due (Secured, Considered Doubtful)

Principal Overdue   22.14  5.69 
Less: Provision for NPA & Doubtful Debts  4.07  1.72 

 18.07  3.97 
(e)	 Balance with Service Tax Authorities  1.28  0.53 
(f)	 Taxes Paid  [Net off Income Tax Provision ` 42.68 crore 

(Previous Year ` Nil)]
 38.92  -   

 9,081.95  5,954.31 
16 Other non-current assets

(a)	 Receivable from Trustee under Securitisation  7.27  6.18 
(b)	 Fixed Deposits with banks 

- Credit Enhancement towards securitisation  64.69  -   
- Kept as deposits for Issuing Bank Guarantee  3.20  -   
- Margin money deposits for Market Linked Debentures  16.85  6.97 

 84.74  6.97 
(c)	 Unamortised expenditures

i) Unamortised DSA commission  34.79  24.70 
Add: Incurred during the Year  29.27  20.69 
Less: Amortised during the year  13.37  10.60 

 50.69  34.79 
Less: to be amortised over the next one year  4.85  3.34 
(Refer Note No. 21 (b))  45.84  31.45 

ii) Unamortised Brokerage on Borrowing  9.41  6.57 
Add: Incurred during the Year  3.05  4.31 
Less: Amortised during the year  1.94  1.47 

 10.52  9.41 
Less: to be amortised over the next one year  2.20  1.66 
(Refer Note No. 21 (b))  8.32  7.75 

iii) Unamortised Mortgage guarantee fees  5.65  3.83 
Add: Incurred during the Year  -    2.92 
Less: Amortised during the year  1.33  1.10 

 4.32  5.65 

Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2017
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

(` in crore)
As at

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016
Less: to be amortised over the next one year  0.71  1.45 
(Refer Note No. 21 (b))  3.61  4.20 

iv) Unamortised Public Issue NCD Expenses  -    -   
Add: Incurred during the Year  33.31  -   
Less: Amortised during the year  1.70  -   

 31.61  -   
Less: to be amortised over the next one year
(Refer Note No. 21 (b))  6.81  -   

 24.80  -   

(d)	 Asset Repossessed under SARFAESI Act  51.98  -   
Less : Provision for Asset repossessed  15.81  -   

 36.17  -   
(e)	 Prepaid Expenses  0.91  0.56 

 211.66  57.11 

(` in crore)
Face Value/
Issue Price

`

Quantity Value
As at March 
31, 2017

As at March 
31, 2016

As at March 
31, 2017

As at March 
31, 2016

17 Current investments
Current portion of Long-term 
investments
a) Pass Through Certificates (‘PTC’)

valued at cost unless stated 
otherwise
Unquoted, fully paid-up
Aergia IFMR Capital 2015 - 
Series-A2 PTC 30 Nov.15	

 -    10 910  -    0.81 

Alcibie IFMR Capital 2015 - 
Series-A2 PTC 27 Nov.15

 -   50 88 847  -    1.57 

Arcas IFMR Capital 2015 - Series-A2 
PTC 30 Sep.15

 -   29 59 786  -    2.41 

Brizo IFMR Capital 2015 - Series-A2 
PTC 17 Aug.15

 -    11 996  -    1.37 

Cabaletta IFMR Capital 2015 -Series 
-A2 PTC 18 Dec.15

  1 84 008   1 84 008  0.54  0.96 

Cadmus IFMR Capital 2015 - 
Series-A2 PTC 05 Nov.15

 -    84 107  -    2.21 

Caerus IFMR Capital 2015- 
Series-A2 PTC 20 May 15

 -  1 15 00 550  -    1.16 

Comus IFMR Capital 2015 - 
Series-A3 PTC 18 Sep.15

 -   43 59 442  -    0.45 

Delphin IFMR Capital 2015 - 
Series-A3 PTC 28 Oct.15

 -   13 17 492  -    0.14 

Geloos IFMR Capital 2015 - 
Series-A2 PTC 29 May.15

 -   37 10 714  -    0.38 

Hysminai IFMR Capital 2015 - Series 
-A2 PTC 30 Oct.15

  9 93 370   9 93 370  0.40  0.01 

IFMR Capital Mosec Aethon 2015 - 
Series-A2 PTC 28 Feb.15

 -  8 77 31 640  -    10.47 

IFMR Capital Mosec Agon 2015 - 
Series-A2 PTC 28 Feb.15

 -  2 11 82 283  -    2.78 

IFMR Capital Mosec Atlas 2014 
-Series-A2 PTC 30 Dec.14

 -  1 10 43 440  -    1.47 

IFMR Capital Mosec Boreas 2015- 
Series-A3 PTC 04 March 15

 -   19 28 565  -    7.12 
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

(` in crore)
Face Value/
Issue Price

`

Quantity Value
As at March 
31, 2017

As at March 
31, 2016

As at March 
31, 2017

As at March 
31, 2016

IFMR Capital Mosec Glaucus 2015 - 
Series A2 PTC 01 Sep.15

  18 54 181   18 54 181  0.82  8.19 

IFMR Capital Mosec Hercules 2015- 
Series-A2 PTC 27 March 15

 -   4 20 577  -    1.86 

IFMR Capital Mosec Maia 2014 - 
Series-A2 PTC 29 Nov.14

 -   2 66 412  -    3.42 

IFMR Capital Mosec Muse 2014 
-Series-A2 PTC 31 Dec.14

 -    46 202  -    7.41 

IFMR Capital Mosec Rhea 2014- 
Series-A3 PTC 26 Nov.14

 -   1 32 301  -    1.60 

IFMR Capital Mosec Vulcan 2015 - 
Series A2 PTC 30 Sep.15

  5 93 180   5 93 180  0.55  1.39 

IFMR Capital Mosec Zephyrus 2015- 
Series-A2 PTC 30 Jan.15

 -   1 80 310  -    5.56 

Karpo IFMR Capital 2015- Series-A2 
PTC 31 July 15

  1 05 137   1 05 137  0.42  1.46 

Libertas IFMR Capital 2015 - Series 
A2 PTC 30 Nov. 15

 1 52 39 096  1 52 39 096  1.53  0.03 

Lucina IFMR Capital 2015 - Series 
-A2 PTC 30 Nov.15

 -   2 37 936  -    1.07 

Manto IFMR Capital 2015 - Series 
-A2 PTC 19 Nov. 15

 -   31 98 234  -    1.33 

Maximus SBL IFMR Capital 2015- 
Series-A2 PTC 25 March 15

 -   2 30 687  -    0.54 

Oread IFMR Capital 2015- Series-A2 
PTC 04 Dec.15

 -   26 19 627  -    0.79 

Plutus IFMR Capital 2015- Series-A2 
PTC 29 July 15

 -    26 345  -    1.12 

Sol IFMR Capital 2015 -Series -A2 
PTC 30 Oct. 15

 -    10 430  -    0.18 

Soter IFMR Capital 2015- Series-A2 
PTC 29 July 15

 -  1 72 31 619  -    1.75 

Thrasos IFMR Capital 2015- 
Series-A2 PTC 15 May 15

 -  1 14 58 746  -    1.16 

Vesta IFMR Capital 2015- Series-A2 
PTC 07 Aug.15

 -    9 825  -    1.31 

 4.26  73.48 
b) Security Receipts valued at cost

unless stated otherwise
Unquoted, fully paid-up
RHF Indian Receivable Trust- I - 30
Sep.2016

    1  -  0.06  -   

RHF Indian Receivable Trust  II - 24
Mar. 2017

    1  -  0.06  -   

 0.12  -   

Current Investments 
a) Unit of Mutual Fund valued at cost

unless stated otherwise
Quoted, fully paid-up
Reliance Liquidity Fund-Direct 
Growth Plan Growth Option

   1 000   16 34 434  -  400.00  -   

SBI Magnum InstaCash -Direct 
Growth Plan 

   1 000   1 39 028  -  50.00  -   

 450.00  -   
 454.38  73.48 
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

(` in crore)
As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016

Book Value Market Value Book Value Market Value
	 Notes:

1	 The aggregate value of investments:
Quoted Investments  450.00  450.64  -    -   
Unquoted Investments  4.38  -    73.48  -   

 454.38  450.64  73.48  -   

2	 The aggregate Provision for diminution in the value 
of investments:
Quoted Investments  -    -   
Unquoted Investments  -    -   

 -    -   

3	 Basis of Valuation As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

at cost less provision for 
diminution in the value of 

Investments

at cost less provision for 
diminution in the value of 

Investments
* for units of Fund net assets value (NAV) is taken as Market Value

(` in crore)
As at

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016
18 Trade receivables

Outstanding for a period exceeding Six months from the due 
date of payment
Unsecured, Considered Good   30.59  -   
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful  -    -   

 30.59 -
19 Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts  252.39  676.80 
Cash on hand  0.10  0.28 

 252.49  677.08 
Other bank balances
Fixed Deposits with banks # (Less than 3 Months)  -    43.04 

 -    43.04 
 252.49  720.12 

# 	 In respect of Fixed Deposits with Banks ` Nil (Previous Year ` 40.04 crore) is kept as credit enhancement towards 
securitisation/assignment transactions, ` Nil (Previous Year ` 3.00 crore) is kept as margin money deposits for Market 
Linked Debentures.

20 Short-term loans and advances 
Unsecured, considered good;
(a)	 Loans repayments within next 12 months 

(Secured, Considered Good)
 Housing loans :

         Individuals   162.55  153.14 
         Others  514.58  398.55 
         Officer of the Company  (Refer Note No.37)  0.04  0.11 

 677.17  551.80 
Commercial loans  230.30  197.74 
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

(` in crore)
As at

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016
(b)	 Installments Due 

-Secured, considered good  35.35  33.87 
 -Unsecured, considered good  0.20  - 

(c)	 Prepaid expenses  0.65  0.33 
(d)	 Sundry advances  3.38  1.43 

 947.05  785.17 
21 Other current assets

(a)	 Interest Accrued on
Loans   65.15  43.30 
Fixed Deposits  0.09  0.28 

	 Investments  2.87  0.02 
 68.11  43.60 

(b)	 Unamortised Expenditure
DSA Commission  4.86  3.34 
Brokerage on Borrowing  2.20  1.66 
Mortgage guarantee fees  0.71  1.45 
Unamortised Public Issue NCD Expenses  6.81  -   

 14.58  6.45 
(c)	 Mark-to-Market Margin

Equity Index Futures & Options  -    2.10 
 82.69  52.15 

(` in crore)

2016-2017 2015-2016
22 Revenue from operations

a) Interest income
Interest on:
Housing and Other Loans  937.75  726.90 
Fixed Deposits  8.53  3.80 

	 Investments  36.58  6.69 
 982.86  737.39 

b) Other Financial income
Processing Fee  81.98  40.13 
Foreclosure & Other Operating Income  19.49  15.95 
Brokerage Commission on Property Solution  6.26  9.19 

 107.73  65.27 
Less : Service Tax Recovered  14.05  8.12 

 93.68  57.16 
c) Bad Debts Recovered  2.03  1.49 

 1,078.57 796.04

23 Other income
a) Profit on Sale of

- Current Investments (Net)  33.86  18.95 
- Long Term Investments (Net)  -  - 

 33.86  18.95 
b) Interest on income tax refund  1.64  -   
c) Miscellaneous income  0.01  0.04 
d) Reversal of Provision for Diminution in the value of Debentures  240.54  -   

Less:  Loss on Sale of Debentures  209.94  -   
 30.60  -   
 66.11  18.99 
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

(` in crore)

2016-2017 2015-2016
24 Employee benefit expense

Payments to and Provision for Employees (Including Managerial 
Remuneration)
- Salary & Bonus etc.  84.64  66.52 
- Contribution to Provident fund and other Funds  3.95  3.50 
- Staff Welfare & other amenities  5.11  1.00 

 93.70  71.02 

25 Finance cost
a) Interest expense

Term Loan From Banks  470.18  411.33 
Cash Credit From Banks  1.46  1.01 
Non Convertible Debentures  171.47  62.12 
Body Corporates (Refer Note No. 31)  0.09  0.11 

 643.20  474.57 
b) Other borrowing costs

Amortised Brokerage (Refer Note No. 16 (c )(ii))  1.94  1.47 
Discount on Commercial Papers  103.36  59.86 
Processing Charges  0.03  0.03 

 105.33  61.36 
 748.53  535.93 

26 Other expenses
Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note No. 28)  0.36  0.16 
Bad Debts Written Off  6.04  3.76 
Bank Charges  0.48  0.31 
Rent  9.48  -   
Repairs & Maintenance-Others  15.32  0.50 
Insurance  0.03  -   
Rates and Taxes  3.90  0.98 
Amortised DSA Commission (Refer Note No. 16 (c )(i))  13.37  10.60 
Amortised Guarantee Commission (Refer Note No. 16 (c )(iii))  1.33  1.10 
Amortised Public Issue NCD Expenses (Refer Note No. 16 (c )(iv))  1.70  -   
Credit Cost  0.18  0.38 
Collection Cost  1.07  1.27 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditures (Refer Note No. 44)  2.05  1.39 
Directors' Sitting Fees  0.23  0.16 
Infrastructure Cost (Net) #  2.75  3.85 
Legal & Professional Fees  20.54  9.91 
Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset  0.18  -   
Marketing Expenses  10.92  13.66 
Management Expenses  3.23  3.22 
Miscellaneous Expenses  5.72  2.29 
Printing and Stationary  1.90  0.27 
Postage, Telegram & Telephone  2.01  0.30 
Provision for Standard Asset  21.37  7.71 
Provision for NPA & Doubtful Debts  10.69  4.40 
Provision for Asset Repossessed  15.75  -   
Sundry Balances Written Off  0.61  -   
Travelling & Conveyance  6.38  4.43 

 157.59  70.66 
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

(` in crore)

2016-2017 2015-2016
Notes:
#	 According to the agreement entered into by the Company with its holding company i.e. Reliance Capital Limited for utilizing 

their office premises including all other amenities, infrastructure and employees at various locations of the Company. 
(Refer Note No.37 on Related Party Transactions)

27 In the opinion of management, all the Assets other than Non-Current Investments are approximately of the value stated if 
realised in the ordinary course of business.

28 Auditor’s Remuneration :
Statutory Audit Fees  0.06  0.06 
Tax Audit Fees  0.02  0.02 
Certification Fees & Work relating to Public Issue of NCD  0.25  0.03 
Limited Review Fees  0.03  0.05 

 0.36  0.16 

29	 Security clause, Maturity profile & Rate of interest in respect of Non convertible Debentures

(a)	 Listed Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (“Secured NCDs”) amounting to ` 3,834.87 crore are secured by 
way of first pari passu legal mortgage and charge over the premises situated at Bharuch and additional pari passu charge by 
way of hypothecation on the present and future book debts/ receivables, outstanding money (loan book), receivable claims 
of the Company with other secured lenders for an amount of ` 3,127.77 crore, except those book debts and receivables 
charged/ to be charged in favour of National Housing Bank for refinance availed / to be availed from them, of Home 
Finance Business subject to maintenance of minimum asset coverage of 100% of issue amount and security amounting 
to ` 707.10 crore is provided by way of first pari passu hypothecation charge on all present and future book debts and 
business receivables of Company’s holding company viz. Reliance Capital Limited (except security created / to be created 
towards securing term loans and cash credit limits). Business receivables includes current assets and investments.

(b)	 Maturity profile of Non-Convertible Debentures are as set out below:
(` in crore)

Interest Rate 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2031-32  Total 
MLD  62.13  20.84  51.81  2.93  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    137.71 
#  -    9.20  -    100.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    109.20 
8.35%  -    -    130.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    130.00 
8.64%  -    -    -    100.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    100.00 
8.70%  -    -    812.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    812.00 
8.75%  -    -    -    -    20.00  -    -    -    -    5.00  25.00 
8.80%  -    -    -    25.00 -  -    10.00  -    -    -    -    35.00 
8.81%  -    -    20.00  -    25.00  -    70.00  -    -    -    -    115.00 
8.82%  -    -    -    -   -  20.00  -    -    -    -    -    20.00 
8.83%  -    -    -    -    -    -    40.00  -    -    -    -    40.00 
8.85%  -    -    -    -    -    -    20.00  -    -    -    -    20.00 
8.90%  -    -    1,129.64  -    215.91  -    -    -    -    -    -    1,345.55 
8.95%  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    25.00  -    -    25.00 
9.00%  -    -    -    60.00  -    -    -    -    18.00  72.82  -    150.82 
9.05%  -    -    15.00  -    333.60  -    -    -    -    -    -    348.60 
9.09%  -    5.00  -    -   -  -    -    -    -    -    -    5.00 
9.15%  -    -    -    -    20.00  -    -    -    15.00  239.30  -    274.30 
9.25%  -    65.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    27.00  -    250.03  342.03 
9.35%  -    -    -    -    -   -  30.00  -    -    -    -    30.00 
9.40%  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    185.68  185.68 
9.45%  -    -    -    -    -    10.00  -    -    -    -    10.00 
9.48%  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1.00  -    -    1.00 
9.50%  -    5.00  -    -    -    -    25.00  -    70.00  -    -    100.00 
9.52%  -    -    -    -    -    -    15.00  -    -    -    -    15.00 
9.70%  -    10.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    10.00 
9.75%  -    -    10.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    10.00 
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Reliance Home Finance Limited

(` in crore)
Interest Rate 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2031-32  Total 
9.80%  -    -    15.00  -    -    -    -    15.00  -    -    -    30.00 
9.90%  -    -    -    -    -    -    1.70  -    -    -    -    1.70 
10.00%  40.00  -    -    -    -    16.00  -    -    -    -    -    56.00 
10.10%  20.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    20.00 
10.33%  -    -    -    -    -    45.00  -    -    -    -    -    45.00 
10.40%  -    -    -    -    -    50.00  -    -    -    -    -    50.00 
10.60%  -    -    -    -    -    8.00  -    -    -    -    -    8.00 
Total  122.13  115.04 2,183.45  287.93  614.51  149.00  211.70  15.00  156.00  317.12  435.71  4,607.59 

# Zero Coupon Deep Discount Non- Convertible Debentures
MLD = Market Linked Non- Convertible Debentures

30	 Security clause & Maturity profile in respect to secured loans from banks

Term loans from Banks [Refered in Note No. 5] and current maturity of long term debts [Refer Note No. 11 (a)(ii)] includes :

a	 Term loans ` 3,405.66 crore (Previous year ` 3,412.45 crore) secured by pari passu first charge in favor of the lender on 
all the book debts, outstanding moneys, receivable claims of the Company, except for those book debts/receivables to be 
charged in favor of National Housing Bank for refinance to be availed, if any, from them, against security not exceeding  
` 3,759.49 crore (Previous year ` 3,765.42 crore).

b	 Term loans ` 551.59 crore (Previous year ` 1,344.89 crore) secured by pari passu first charge in favor of the lender on all 
the standard book debts, outstanding moneys, receivable claims of the Company, except for those book debts/receivables 
to be charged in favor of National Housing Bank for refinance to be availed, if any, from them, against security not exceeding 
` 611.46 crore (Previous year ` 1,489.83 crore).

c	 Term loans ` Nil (Previous year ` 179.96 crore) secured by hypothecation of book-debts/receivables (standard only) 
of the Company on pari-passu basis with other secured lenders, against security not exceeding ` Nil (Previous year  
` 199.07 crore).

d	 Term loans ` 109.86 crore (Previous year ` 33.41 crore) secured by pari passu first charge in favor of the lender on all 
the book debts, outstanding moneys, receivable claims of the Company, against security not exceeding ` 121.41 crore 
(Previous year ` 40.09 crore).

e	 Maturity profile of Secured Term Loans from banks are as set out below;

(` in crore)
 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20  2020-21  2021-22  2022- 23  Total 

Term Loan from Banks  1,266.68  1,112.09  945.01  436.67  216.66  90.00  4,067.11

31	 As on April 26, 2010 the Company had entered into Business Transfer Agreements (‘BTA’) with its holding company i.e. Reliance 
Capital Limited (‘RCL’) to transfer the RCL’s home finance business to the Company at book value, such that the entire economic 
risk and reward of the RCL’s home finance business passes to the Company from the commencement of business on the value 
date i.e. April 1, 2010. As on January 31, 2011 the BTA further amended between the Company and Reliance Capital Limited 
and as per the amended BTA with RCL:

a) The RCL holds loan assets of ` 2.82 crore (Previous year ` 4.41 crore) of the Company in the capacity of trust as on
March 31, 2017.

b) During the year the Company has taken the following assets, income and expenses from RCL :

i) Interest & other income of ` 0.52 crore (Previous year ` 0.62 crore)

ii) Interest & other expenses of ` 0.57 crore (Previous year ` 1.46 crore)

32	 Disclosures pursuant to Para 5 (II) of the Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) 
Directions, 2016 vide National Housing Bank (‘NHB’) Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/ MD&CEO/ 2016, as applicable 
to the Company

(i) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

Items Type Number reference

a) National Housing Bank Registration No. 07.0101.12 

b) Ministry of Corporate Affairs Ministry of Corporate Affairs  U67190MH2008PLC183216 
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(ii) Ratings assigned by rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Rating agency Borrowings type Rating
A.	 NCDs issued on Private 

Placement basis:
Credit Analysis & Research Limited Long Term Debt Programme ` 8,000 crore  CARE AA+ 
Brickwork Ratings India Private 
Limited

Long Term Secured NCD ` 2,000 crore  BWR AA+ 

Brickwork Ratings India Private 
Limited

Long Term Unsecured Upper Tier II NCD  
` 100 crore 

 BWR AA 

Credit Analysis & Research Limited  Subordinated Debt ` 400 crore  CARE AA+* 
Brickwork Ratings India Private 
Limited

Long Term Unsecured Subordinated Tier II 
NCD ` 400 crore 

 BWR AA+ 

Credit Analysis & Research Limited Upper Tier II Bond ` 100 crore  CARE AA 
Credit Analysis & Research Limited Principal Projected Market Linked Debentures 

` 300 crore 
 CARE PP-MLD AA+ 

B.	 NCDs issued through Public 
Issue:
Credit Analysis & Research Limited Non-Convertible Debentures Public Issue  

` 3,000 crore 
 CARE AA+ 

Brickwork Ratings India Private 
Limited

Long Term Secured NCD Public Issue  
` 3,000 crore 

 BWR AA+ 

Credit Analysis & Research Limited Upper Tier II bond - Public Issue ` 500 crore  CARE AA 
Brickwork Ratings India Private 
Limited

Public Issue of Long Term Unsecured Upper 
Tier II NCD ` 500 crore 

 BWR AA 

C.	 Commercial Paper:

ICRA Limited Short Term Debt CP ` 3,000 crore  [ICRA] A1+ 
* the rating has been upgraded to CARE AA+ from CARE AA.

(iii) No penalties were levied upon the Company by any of the regulator.
(iv)  Joint ventures and overseas subsidiaries

(` in crore)
Items As at 

March 31, 2017 
As at 

March 31, 2016 
Area, country of operation  India  India  India  India 
Joint venture partners with regard to Joint 
ventures and Overseas subsidiaries

 None  None  None  None 

(v)  Related Party Transactions

a) Details of all material transactions with related parties has been given in Notes No 37 of the financial statements.

b) Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions

The transactions between the Company and related parties shall be entered with prior approval of the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors into, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable laws.

33	 Disclosures pursuant to Annexure IV of  Para 5 (II) of the Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Governance (National 
Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 vide National Housing Bank (‘NHB’) Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/ MD&CEO/ 
2016, as applicable to the Company
1	 Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

(` in crore)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
i) CRAR (%)  19.24  16.34 
ii) CRAR - Tier I capital (%)  9.62  10.51 
iii) CRAR - Tier II capital (%)*  9.62  5.83 
iv) Amount of Subordinated Debt raised as Tier II Capital*  773.71  273.00 
v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debts Instruments  -    -   

* Includes Upper Tier II Capital amounting to ` 435.71 crore (Previous year ` Nil) as per NHB circular No. NHB(ND)/
DRS/Pol-No-23/2008 dated April 24, 2008.
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2	 Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

(` in crore)
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2017
As at  

March 31, 2016
Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987  19.92  13.03 
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken

into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of
the NHB Act, 1987

 40.01  29.55 

c) Total  59.93  42.58 
Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add :
a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987  34.52  6.89 
b) Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

taken into account for the purpose of Statutory Reserve u/s. 29C of the
NHB Act, 1987

 -    10.46 

Less :
a) Amount appropriated from Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act,

1987
 -    -   

b) Amount withdrawn from Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 which has been taken into account for the purpose of provision 
u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

 -    -   

Balance at the end of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987  54.44  19.92 
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken

into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of
the NHB Act, 1987

 40.01  40.01 

c) Total  94.45  59.93 

3	 Investments

(` in crore)
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2017
As at  

March 31, 2016
1) Value of Investments

i) Gross Value of Investments
a) In India  507.75  80.42 
b) Outside India  -    -   

ii) Provisions for Depreciation
a) In India  0.01  -   
b) Outside India  -    -   

iii) Net Value of Investments
a) In India  507.74  80.42 
b) Outside India  -    -   

2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation of investments
i) Opening Balance  -    -   
ii) Add: Provisions made during the year/ Transfer pursuant to Scheme

of Arrangement
 240.55  -   

iii) Less: Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year  240.54  -   
iv) Closing balance  0.01  -   
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4	 Derivatives 

i) Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

(` in crore)
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2017
As at  

March 31, 2016
i) The notional principal of swap agreements  -    -   
ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their

obligations under the agreements
 -    -   

iii) Collateral required by the HFC upon entering  into swaps  -    -   
iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps  -    -   
v) The fair value of the swap book  -    -   

ii) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative

(` in crore)
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2017
(I) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year 

(instrument- wise)*
IRF 759GS2026 28/04/2016  1.62 
IRF 759GS2026 26/05/2016  3.24 
IRF 759GS2026 30/06/2016  3.24 
IRF 759GS2026 28/07/2016  3.24 
IRF 759GS2026 25/08/2016  3.24 
IRF 759GS2026 29/09/2016  3.24 
IRF 759GS2026 27/10/2016  3.24 
IRF 759GS2026 24/11/2016  3.24 
IRF 759GS2026 29/12/2016  3.24 
IRF 759GS2026 25/01/2017  3.24 
IRF 697GS2026 23/02/2017  71.12 
IRF 759GS2026 23/02/2017  69.68 
IRF 697GS2026 30/03/2017  37.88 
IRF 759GS2026 30/03/2017  38.44 
IRF 759GS2026 27/04/2017  1.60 
Total  249.50 

(II) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 
March 31, 2017
IRF 759GS2026 27/04/2017  1.60 
Total  1.60 

(III) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective” 
(IV) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective” 
* Intra-day transaction considered on gross basis and not net Derivatives expiring considered as being traded to
arrive at notional principal traded

iii) Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

A. 	 Qualitative Disclosure

The Company has Board approved risk management policy for capital market exposure including derivatives 
contract trading. Trading in derivates are primarily for the Market Linked Debentures (MLD) portfolio. Risk 
Management Team independently calculate sensitivities and revalues portfolio on daily basis and ensures that risk 
limits are adhered on daily basis. Market risk limits have been established at portfolio level.

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are 
assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate 
provision as required under any law/ accounting standards there are no foreseeable losses on such long term 
contracts (including derivative contracts) has been made in the books of accounts
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B. 	 Quantitative Disclosure

(` in crore)
Particulars Currency 

Derivatives
Interest Rate 
Derivatives

(i)	 Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
(a)	 Traded during the year - 249.50
(b)	 Outstanding as on 31st March 2017 - 1.60

(ii)	 Marked to Market Positions
(a)	 Assets (+)^ - *
(b)	 Liability (-) - -

(iii)	 Credit Exposure - -
(iv)	 Unhedged Exposures - -
*` 47,600
^ Long Position in Derivatives considered under Assets

5	 Disclosures relating to Securitisation

(` in crore)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars  2016-17  2015-16 

1) No. of SPVs sponsored by the Company  for Securitisation Transactions  5 2 
2) Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored

by the Company
 300.61  53.93 

3) Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply with
Minimum Retention Requirement (MRR) as on the date of balance
sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

• First loss  - -
• Others  - -

b) On-balance sheet exposures
• First loss  36.58  11.94 
• Others  2.22 -

4) Amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply with
Minimum Retention Requirement (MRR) as on the date of balance
sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

i) Exposure to own securitizations
• First loss  - -
• Others  - -

ii) Exposure to third party securitizations
• First loss  - -
• Others  13.36  22.09 

b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitizations

• First loss  - -
• Others  - -

ii) Exposure to third party securitizations
• First loss  - -
• Others  - -
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6	 Disclosures relating to Assignment 

(` in crore)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars  2016-17  2015-16 

1) No. of Direct Assignments (Nos.) 19 15 
2) Total amount of assigned assets as per books of the Assignor  1,067.20  629.24 
3) Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply with

Minimum Retention Requirement (MRR) as on the date of balance
sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

• First loss  - -
• Others  - -

b) On-balance sheet exposures
• First loss  -   -
• Others  100.01  53.83 

4) Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than Minimum
Retention Requirement  (MRR)
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

i) Exposure to own securitizations
• First loss  - -
• Others  - -

ii) Exposure to third party securitizations
• First loss  - -
• Others  -   -

b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitizations

• First loss  28.10  28.10 
• Others  - -

ii) Exposure to third party securitizations
• First loss  - -
• Others  - -

7	 Details of Financial Assets Sold to Securitisation/ Reconstruction Company for Assets Reconstruction

(` in crore)
Particulars  2016-17  2015-16 
i) No. of accounts  4  -   
ii) Aggregate value of accounts sold to SC / RC  (net of provisions

` 0.59 crore)
 1.17  -   

iii) Aggregate consideration  1.50  -   
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier 

years
 -    -   

v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value  0.33  -   

8	 Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by the Company 

(` in crore)
Particulars  2016-17  2015-16 
i) No. of accounts  2,926  1,361 
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold  861.31  198.73 
iii) Aggregate consideration (Including MRR)  861.31  198.73 
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier 

years
 -    -   

v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value  -    -   
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9	 (a) 	 Details of Non Performing Financial Assets Purchased  

(` in crore)
Particulars  2016-17  2015-16 
1) (i)	 No. of accounts Purchased During the year  -    -   

(ii)	 Aggregate Outstanding  -    -   
2) (i)	 Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year  -    -   

(ii)	 Aggregate outstanding  -    -   

(b) 	 Details of Non Performing Financial Assets Sold   

(` in crore)
Particulars  2016-17  2015-16 
(i) 	 No. of accounts Sold During the year  -    -   
(ii) 	 Aggregate Outstanding  -    -   
(iii)	 Aggregate consideration received  -    -   

10	 Assets Liabilities Management Maturity pattern of certain items of asset and liabilities (At Book Values)
(` in crore)

Liabilities  
As at March 31, 2017

Assets 
As at March 31, 2017 

Borrowings 
from Bank

Market 
Borrowings

 Loans & 
Advances  

Investments

Upto 30/31 day  50.00  52.27  76.14  453.91 
 (274.48)  (104.30)  (61.97)  (3.63)

Over 1 month to 2 months  66.66  173.69  79.04  0.09 
 (66.67)  (346.03)  (63.46)  (5.32)

Over 2 month to 3 months  216.66  261.20  79.44  0.32 
 (142.71)  (0.00)  (66.77)  (10.19)

Over 3 month to 6 months  256.70  491.47  246.31  0.02 
 (275.42)  (52.45)  (238.24)  (24.44)

Over 6 month to 1 Year  726.66  97.18  462.10  0.04 
 (631.47)  (35.76)  (352.96)  (29.90)

Over 1 year to 3 Years  2,057.10  2,298.48  1,336.16  0.19 
 (2,346.10)  (201.46)  (722.24)  (6.94)

Over 3 year to 5 Years  653.32  902.45  490.66  50.22 
 (1,268.34)  (166.41)  (647.97)  (0.00)

Over 5 Year  to 7 years  90.00  360.70  1,540.51  0.25 
 (240.00)  (169.00)  (675.98)  (0.00)

Over 7 Year  to 10 years  -    488.12  1,462.84  0.43 
 (0.00)  (227.70)  (949.64)  (0.00)

Over 10 years  -    435.71  4,195.26  2.27 
 (0.00)  0.00  (2,957.90)  (0.00)

Total  4,117.10  5,561.27  9,968.46  507.74 
 (5,245.19)  (1,303.11)  (6,737.13)  (80.42)

Notes: 

(a)	 All unquoted equity shares have been included in ‘Over 10 years’. The maturity pattern has been prepared in line with 
various regulations issued by NHB from time to time, best practices and based upon best estimate of the management 
with regard to the timing of various cashflows.

(b)	 The classification of Assets and Liabilities into current and non-current is carried out based on their residual maturity 
profile as per requirement of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The above maturity pattern of assets and 
liabilities has been prepared by the Company after taking into consideration guidelines for assets-liabilities management 
(ALM) system in housing finance companies issued by NHB, best practices and best estimate of the Assets-Liability 
Committee /Management with regard to the timing of various cash flows and estimate of foreclosure of the loans 
expected in next one year, which has been relied upon by the auditors.
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11	 Exposures

(a) 	 Exposure to Real Estate 

(` in crore)
Category As at  

March 31, 2017
As at  

March 31, 2016 
a Direct Exposure

i) Residential Mortgage
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that 
is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented
(a) 	 Individual Housing loans upto ` 15 lakhs  709.59  567.25 
(b)	 Individual Housing loans More than ` 15 lakhs  4,109.08  2,927.66 

ii) Commercial Real Estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates 
(office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial 
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted 
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, 
land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure 
shall also include non-fund based limits

3,412.15 2,747.99

iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitised exposures -
a) Residential  3.49  -   
b) Commercial Real Estate  -    -   

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector  8,234.31  6,242.90 
Notes :

i) For the exposure to real estate only loans secured by way of mortgage/hypothecation of housing properties,
commercial properties and land are considered.

ii) In computing the above information, certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the
Management which have been relied upon by the auditors.

(b) 	 Exposure to Capital Market 

(` in crore)
Category As at  

March 31, 2017
As at  

March 31, 2016 
i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible

debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of
which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

- -

ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or
on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs
/ ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity oriented mutual funds;

- -

iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds
or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds
are taken as primary security;

- -

iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible
debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds ‘does not fully
cover the advances;

- -

v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

- -

vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares
/ bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies in
anticipation of raising resources;

- -

vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; - -
viii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and

unregistered)
- -

Total Exposure to Capital Market - -
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12 Details of Financing of the Parent Company Product
(` in crore)

 2016-17  2015-16 
There are no parent Company products which are financed by the Company 
during the year.

- -

13 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the Company
There are no Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the Company.

14 Unsecured Advances
(` in crore)

As at  
March 31, 2017

As at  
March 31, 2016

Advances against Securities of Intangible Assets - -
Total Advances against Securities of Intangible Assets - -

15 Remuneration of Directors
(` in crore)

 2016-17  2015-16 
Directors’ Sitting Fees  0.23  0.16 

 0.23  0.16 

16 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
(` in crore)

 2016-17  2015-16 
During the year there is no changes in the accounting policies and no prior 
period items

- -

34	 Additional Disclosures 

Disclosures pursuant to Para 5 of Annex 4 of the Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) 
Directions, 2016 vide National Housing Bank (‘NHB’) Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/ MD&CEO/ 2016, as applicable to 
the Company

1. Provisions and Contingencies

(` in crore)
As at  

March 31, 2017 
As at  

March 31, 2016
a) Provision for depreciation on Investments - -
b) Provision made towards Income tax  (9.57)  51.67 
c) Provision for NPA & Doubtful Debts  10.69  4.40 
d) Provision for Standard Assets  21.37  7.71 

-	 Teaser Loan  (0.05)  (0.09)
- 	 Commercial Real Estate  10.63  0.51 
- 	 Commercial Real Estate -Residential Housing  3.83  1.91 
- 	 Other Standard Assets  6.96  5.38 

e) Other Provisions and Contingencies (with details)
- 	 Provision for Repossessed assets  15.75  -   

2. Break up of Loans & Advances and Provision Thereon

(` in crore)
Housing Non Housing 

As at  
March 31, 2017

As at   
March 31, 2016

As at  
March 31, 2017

As at   
March 31, 2016

Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount  6,707.36  4,984.31  3,203.20  1,702.72 
b) Provisions made  33.42  24.67  23.21  10.58 
Sub-Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount  31.96  18.69  15.09  15.69 
b) Provisions made  4.79  2.80  2.36  2.10 
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(` in crore)
Housing Non Housing 

As at  
March 31, 2017

As at   
March 31, 2016

As at  
March 31, 2017

As at   
March 31, 2016

Doubtful Assets – Category-I
a) Total Outstanding Amount  11.81  11.61  6.51  1.10 
b) Provisions made  2.95  2.90  1.63  0.28 
Doubtful Assets – Category-II
a) Total Outstanding Amount  4.75  10.91  0.40  3.78 
b) Provisions made  1.90  4.37  0.16  1.51 
Doubtful Assets – Category-III
a) Total Outstanding Amount  1.55  3.79  0.43  0.04 
b) Provisions made  0.62  1.52  0.17  0.02 
Loss Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount  -    -    11.35  -   
b) Provisions made  -    -    11.35  -   
TOTAL
a) Total Outstanding Amount  6,757.43  5,029.31  3,236.98  1,723.33 
b) Provisions made  43.68  36.26  38.88  14.49 

3. Exposure

a) Concentration of Loans & Advances
(` in crore)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2017 

As at  
March 31, 2016

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers  861.35  574.31 
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of 
the Company

8.62% 8.52%

b) Concentration of all Exposures
(` in crore)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2017 

As at  
March 31, 2016

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers  861.35  574.31 
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers to Total Exposure of 
the Company

8.64% 8.52%

c) Concentration of NPAs
(` in crore)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2017 

As at  
March 31, 2016

Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts  46.87  21.73 

d) Sector-wise NPAs
(` in crore)

Particulars Percentage of NPAs to total advances 
in that sector

 2016-17  2015-16 
Housing
	 Individual 0.84% 1.20%

Builder Loans - Residential projects 0.47% 0.11%
Loans to Corporates - Residential projects # 0.94% 0.80%

Non Housing
For mortgage/property/home equity loans 1.18% 1.66%
Loans to Corporates - Non Residential projects # 0.10% 0.24%
Loans to Corporates - Others # 3.20% 0.00%

# Corporate means all other loans other than Individual
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e) Movement of NPAs

(` in crore)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2017 

As at  
March 31, 2016

Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)  0.58  0.74 

Movement of NPAs (Gross)

(a) 	 Opening Balance  65.61  53.15 

(b) 	 Additions during the year/ Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement  58.12  32.44 

(c) 	 Reductions during the year  39.89  19.98 

(d) 	 Closing balance  83.84  65.61 

Movement of Net NPAs

(a) 	 Opening Balance  50.10  41.05 

(b) 	 Additions during the year/ Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement  39.01  24.09 

(c) 	 Reductions during the year  31.21  15.04 

(d) 	 Closing balance  57.90  50.10 

Movement of provisions for NPAs

(a) 	 Opening Balance  15.51  12.10 

(b) 	 Additions during the year/ Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement  19.11  8.35 

(c) 	 Write-off/write-back of excess provisions  8.68  4.94 

(d) 	 Closing balance  25.94  15.51 

Gross Non Performing Assets and Net Non Performing Assets given above excluding bonds & debentures.

4. Overseas Assets (for those with joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

There are no Overseas Assets.

5. Off- balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)

There are no Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored by the Company which are required to be consolidated as per accounting
norms.

6. Customer Complaints (as certified by the management)

(` in crore)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2017 

As at  
March 31, 2016

(a) 	 No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year     14     20 

(b) 	 No. of complaints received during the year/ Pursuant to Scheme of 
Arrangement 

   1 926    1 117 

(c) 	 No. of complaints redressed during the year    1 917    1 123 

(d) 	 No. of complaints pending at the end of the year     23     14 

35	 Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under: (` in crore)

Particulars  2016-17  2015-16 

Employer’s contribution to provident fund  1.94  1.42 

Employer’s contribution to superannuation fund 
[* ` 10,000 (Previous Year ` 20,000)]

 *  * 

Employer’s contribution to pension scheme  1.06  0.77 

 3.00  2.20 
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b) Defined benefit plans

The following table summarise the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, the fund status and amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan and leave
encashment plan. The said information is based on certificates provided by the actuary.

(` in crore)
Particulars Gratuity benefit 

(funded)
Leave Encashment 
Benefit (Unfunded)

 2016-17  2015-16  2016-17  2015-16 
I. Table showing change in Benefit Obligation:

Liability at the beginning of the period  2.96  1.36  0.53  0.28 
Interest Cost  0.24  0.11  0.04  0.02 
Current Service Cost  0.74  0.22  0.08  0.08 
Benefit Paid  (1.05)  (0.45)  (0.06)  (0.08)
Liability Transferred in / Acquisitions  0.73  0.74  -    -   
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations  -    -    (0.04)  0.22 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations –Due to change in Financial 
Assumptions 

 0.18  (0.02)  -    -   

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations –Due to change in 
Demographic Assumptions 

-     0.15  -    -   

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations –Due to Experience  0.02  0.85  -    -   
Liability at the end of the period  3.81  2.96  0.55  0.53 

II. Changes in the fair Value of Plan Assets and the
reconciliation thereof:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the period  0.93  1.36 -    -    
Expected return on Plan Assets  0.07  0.11 -    -    
Contributions  2.27 -     0.06  0.08 
Assets Transferred in/Acquisitions  1.46 -     -    -   
Benefit paid  (1.05)  (0.45)  (0.06)  (0.08)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets  0.15  (0.09) -    -    
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the period  3.83  0.93 -    -    
Total Actuarial gain/(loss) to be recognized  0.05  1.08 -    -    
Funded Status - -  (0.55)  (0.53)

III. Actual return on Plan Assets

Expected return on Plan Assets  0.07  0.11  -    -   
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets  0.15  (0.09)  -    -   
Actual return on Plan Assets  0.23  0.02  -    -   

IV. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the period  (3.81)  (2.96)  0.55  0.53 
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period  3.83  0.93 -    -    
Difference Funded status  0.02  (2.03)  (0.55)  (0.53)
Unrecognised Actual Gain / (Loss)  -    -   -    -    
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet (liability)  0.02  (2.03)  (0.55)  (0.53)

V. Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
Current Service Cost  0.74  0.22  0.08  0.08 
Interest Cost *[ Previous Year ` (4110)]  0.16  0*  0.04  0.02 
Expected return on Plan Assets  -    -   -    -    
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognized  0.05  1.08  (0.04)  0.22 
Expense recognised in Profit and Loss Account  0.95  1.30  0.08  0.32 
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(` in crore)
Particulars Gratuity benefit 

(funded)
Leave Encashment 
Benefit (Unfunded)

 2016-17  2015-16  2016-17  2015-16 
VI. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Opening Net Liability  2.03  (0.01)  0.53  0.28 
Expense as above  0.95  1.30  0.08  0.32 
Net Liability / (Asset) Transfer In  (0.74)  0.74  -    -   
Employers Contribution paid  (2.27) -     (0.06)  (0.08)
Closing Net Liability/(Assets)  (0.02)  2.03  0.55  0.53 

VII. Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.66% 8.01% 7.45% 7.57%
Rate of return on Plan Assets 7.66% 8.01%  -    -   
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

VIII. Experience Adjustment
Plan Assets at the end of year  -    -    -    -   
Defined benefit obligations at the end of year  -    -    0.55  0.53 
Amount not recognised as an Asset (limit in para 59(b))  -    -    -    -   
Surplus / (Deficit)  -    -    (0.55)  (0.53)
Experience adjustment on Plan Assets gain/(loss)  0.15  (0.09)  -    -   
Experience adjustment on Plan Liabilities (gain)/loss  0.02  0.85  (0.04)  0.22 

IX. Particulars of the amounts for the year and previous years
 Gratuity for the year ended March 31 

   2 017    2 016    2 015    2 014    2 013 
Present value of benefit obligation  3.81  2.96  1.36  0.71  0.72 
Fair value of plan assets  3.83  0.93  1.36  0.72  0.69 
Excess of obligation over plan assets  0.02  2.03  0.01  (0.01)  0.03 

X. Experience Adjustment
Experience adjustment on Plan Assets Gain/(Loss)  0.15  (0.09)  0.05  (0.02)  -   
Experience adjustment on Plan Liabilities (Gain)/Loss  0.02  0.85  0.30  (0.02)  0.11 

Notes:
i) The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority,

promotion and other relevant factors.
iii) General Descriptions of significant defined plans:

a) Gratuity plan
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death and permanent disablement, 
in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 or as per the Company’s Scheme whichever is
more beneficial.

b) Leave plan
Encashment of leave can be availed by the employee for balance in the earned account as on January 1,
2009. All carry forward earned leaves with a maximum limit of 10 Days, are available for availment but not for
encashment.

Other Employee Benefits – Phantom Stock
I. 	 Details of Option granted, forfeited and exercised

Particulars 2016-17 (Options) 2015-16 (Options)
Outstanding as at April 1, 2016  579,400  -   
Granted  -    579,400 
Exercised  -    -   
Lapsed/ Forfeited/ Surrendered  141,000  -   
Outstanding as at March 31, 2017  438,400  579,400 
Exercisable as at March 31, 2017  -    -   
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II. Terms and conditions of the scheme

Date of grant

Details of vesting schedule and condition Phantom stock granted under the scheme would vest within not less 
than 1 year and not more than 5 years from the last date of vesting 
of such Phantom stock option. Vesting of Phantom stock option 
would be subject to continued employment with the company and 
the Phantom stock option would vest on passage of time

Appreciation as per Phantom stock option Excess of fair market of share on the date of exercise determined in 
terms of Phantom stock option scheme over the base price.

Exercise Period In case of continuation of employment :
Vested Phantom stock option can be exercised any time Upto 3 years 
from the date of last vesting of Phantom stock options and
In case of cessation of employment :
Different periods depending on kind of cessation as per provision of 
the Phantom stock option scheme

Settlement of Phantom stock option Within 90 days from the date of exercise by cash

III. Fair value of the Option granted was estimated on the date of grant based on the following assumptions

Discount rate 6.77%

Expected life 5 years

IV. The Company’s liability toward the Phantom stock option is accounted for on the basis of an independent actuarial
valuation done at the year end. As per the valuation the liability for the year is ` 0.21 crore (Previous year ` 0.11
crore) which is debited to Statement of profit and loss account and the liability is shown in the Balance sheet  under
the head Other current liabilities and clubbed under Other payables.

36	 Segment reporting
The Company is mainly engaged in the housing finance business, all other activities revolve around the main business of the 
Company, as such there is no separate reportable segment and Company’s all operations are conducted within India, hence there 
is no separate reportable geographical segment, under Accounting Standard -17 (AS-17), on “Segment Reporting” notified by 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

37	 Related party disclosures
A.	 List of Related Parties and their relationship:
i) Holding Company

Reliance Capital Limited
ii) Subsidiaries of Holding Company / Fellow Subsidaries

1 Reliance Nippon Life Asset Management Limited 
(formerly Reliance Capital Asset Management Limited)

14 Reliance Securities Limited

2 Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Limited 15 Reliance Commodities Limited
3 Reliance Asset Management (Mauritius) Limited 16 Reliance Financial Limited
4 Reliance Capital Asset Management (UK) Limited 

(dissolved w.e.f. June 14, 2016)
17 Reliance Money Express Limited (ceased w.e.f. 

February 7, 2017)
5 Reliance Capital Pension Fund Limited 18 Reliance Money Precious Metals Private Limited 
6 Reliance AIF Management Company Limited 19 Reliance Money Solutions Private Limited 
7 Reliance Capital AIF Trustee Company Private Limited 20 Reliance Wealth Management Limited
8 Reliance Capital Trustee Co. Limited 21 Quant Capital Private Limited 
9 Reliance General Insurance Company Limited 22 Quant Broking Private Limited 
10 Reliance Nippon Life Insurance Company Limited 

(formerly Reliance Life Insurance Company Limited)
23 Quant Securities Private Limited  

11 Reliance Commercial Finance Limited (formerly Reliance 
Gilts Limited) 

24 Quant Commodity Broking Private Limited 
(ceased from August 18, 2016) 

12 Reliance Exchangenext Limited 25 Quant Capital Finance and Investments Private 
Limited (ceased from July 7, 2016)

13 Reliance Corporate Advisory Services Limited (formerly 
Reliance Spot Exchange Infrastructure Limited)

26 Quant Investment Services Private Limited
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iii) Key Managerial Personnel

Shri Ravindra Sudhalkar Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. October 1, 2016 )

Shri Sandip Parikh Manager (upto September 30, 2016 )

Shri Sandip Parikh Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. December 6, 2016 )

Shri Amrish Shah Chief Financial Officer (upto December 6, 2016 )

Kum. Roopa Joshi Chief Financial Officer (Till May 7, 2015)

Ms. Parul Jain Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (w.e.f. December 6, 2016 )

Ms. Ekta Thakurel Company Secretary (upto December 6, 2016 )

Kum. Deepali Bhatt Company Secretary (From May 7, 2015 till July 30, 2015)
B.	 List of other related parties under common control with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Enterprise over which individual described in clause A (ii) above has control or significant influence.

1 Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited 2 Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Limited

C. 	 Transactions during the year with related parties:
(` in crore)

Particulars  Holding  
Company  

Fellow 
Subsidiary

 Parties 
under 

common 
control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  

 Total 

Equity Share Capital 
a) Issued during the year  50.00  -    -    -    50.00 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
b) Matured /Redeemed during the year  -    -    -    -    -   

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
c) Balance as at March 31, 2017  115.82  -    -    -    115.82 

 (65.82)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (65.82)
Security Premium Received on Issue of Equity Share 
a) Received during the year  150.00  -    -    -    150.00 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
b) Balance as at March 31, 2017  405.18  -    -    -    405.18 

 (255.18)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (255.18)
Trade Payables
a) Sundry Payables as on March 31, 2017  0.15  -    -    -    0.15 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
Sundry Receivables
a) Sundry Receivable as on March 31, 2017  -    -    -    -    -   

 (0.03)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.03)
Income
a) Infrastructure Cost  4.52  -    -    -    4.52 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
b) Interest & Other Income transferred under BTA  0.52  -    -    -    0.52 

 (0.62)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.62)
c) Brokerage Commission on Property Solution  0.20  -    -    -    0.20 

 (0.39)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.39)
Expenses
a) Infrastructure Cost  22.63  -    -    -    22.63 

 (3.60)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (3.60)
b) Salary Cost  -    -    -    -    -   

 (4.40)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (4.40)
c) Management Fees  3.00  -    -    -    3.00 

 (3.00)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (3.00)
d) Other Expenses transferred under BTA  0.19  -    -    -    0.19 

 (0.99)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.99)
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(` in crore)
Particulars  Holding  

Company  
Fellow 

Subsidiary
 Parties 
under 

common 
control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  

 Total 

e) Finance Cost transferred under BTA  0.39  -    -    -    0.39 
 (0.47)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.47)

f) Reimbursement of Expenses  0.15  -    -    -    0.15 
 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 

Security Issue for Non Convertible Debentures 
a) Security Issue for Non Convertible Debentures  707.10  -    -    -    707.10 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
With Reliance Commercial Finance Limited
Income 
Reimbursement of Expenses Received -Infrastructure 
Cost

 -    0.21  -    -    0.21 
 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 

Valuation Charges Received  -    0.02  -    -    0.02 
 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 

Expenses
Reimbursement of Expenses Paid -Infrastructure Cost  -    4.78  -    -    4.78 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
With Reliance General Insurance Company Limited
Non Convertible Debentures -Secured
Balance as at March 31, 2017  -    40.00  -    -    40.00 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
Expenses
Insurance Premium paid  -    0.65  -    -    0.65 

 (-)  (0.72)  (-)  (-)  (0.72)
Interest Accrued on Non Convertible Debentures  -    0.87  -    -    0.87 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
With Reliance Nippon Life Insurance Company Limited
Non Convertible Debentures -Unsecured
Balance as at March 31, 2017  -    37.00  -    -    37.00 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
Expenses
Term Insurance Premium paid  -    0.29  -    -    0.29 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
Interest Accrued on Non Convertible Debentures  -    0.84  -    -    0.84 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
With Reliance Securities Limited 
Non Convertible Debentures -Secured 
Balance as at March 31, 2017  -    0.25  -    -    0.25 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
Income 
Brokerage Commission on Property Solution * ` 9,000  -    -    -    -    -   

 (-)  (*)  (-)  (-)  (*) 
Expenses
Brokerage Paid  -    0.26  -    -    0.26 

 (-)  (0.06)  (-)  (-)  (0.06)
With Reliance Financial Limited 
Non Convertible Debentures -Secured 
Balance as at March 31, 2017  -    0.25  -    -    0.25 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
With Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Limited
Expenses
Employee ID card printing  charges paid * ` 14,390  -    -    -    -    -   

 (-)  (-)  (*)  (-)  (*) 
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(` in crore)
Particulars  Holding  

Company  
Fellow 

Subsidiary
 Parties 
under 

common 
control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  

 Total 

With Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited
Trade Payable as on March 31, 2017 
Trade Payable as on March 31, 2017  -    -    -    -    -   

 (-)  (-)  (0.07)  (-)  (0.07)
Buildings Purchased
Building Purchase  -    -    2.14  -    2.14 

 (-)  (-)  (5.58)  (-)  (5.58)
Income 
Brokerage Commission on Property Solution  -    -    1.90  -    1.90 

 (-)  (-)  (4.44)  (-)  (4.44)
With Shri Ravindra Sudhalkar
Housing Loan
a) Given during the year  -    -    -    3.00  3.00 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
b) Repaid during the year  -    -    -    3.00  3.00 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
c) Balance as at March 31, 2017  -    -    -    -    -   

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  -   
Income 
Interest Income on Loans  -    -    -    0.05  0.05 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
Processing Fees * ` 3,000  -    -    -    *  * 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
Expenses 
Employee Benefits Expense  -    -    -    1.81  1.81 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
With Shri Sandip Parikh
Housing Loan
a) Repaid during the year  -    -    -    0.23  0.23 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.01)  (0.01)
b) Balance as at March 31, 2017  -    -    -    0.16  0.16 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.39)  (0.39)
Income 
Interest Income on Loans  -    -    -    0.02  0.02 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.04)  (0.04)
Expenses 
Employee Benefits Expense  -    -    -    1.41  1.41 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (1.41)  (1.41)
With Shri Amrish Shah
Housing Loan
a) Repaid during the year  -    -    -    0.22  0.22 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.25)  (0.25)
b) Balance as at December 6, 2016  -    -    -    0.77  0.77 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.99)  (0.99)
Income 
Interest Income on Loans  -    -    -    0.05  0.05 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.10)  (0.10)
Expenses 
Employee Benefits Expense  -    -    -    0.50  0.50 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.52)  (0.52)
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(` in crore)
Particulars  Holding  

Company  
Fellow 

Subsidiary
 Parties 
under 

common 
control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  

 Total 

With Kum. Roopa Joshi
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense  -    -    -    -    -   

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.02)  (0.02)
With Ms. Parul Jain
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense  -    -    -    0.04  0.04 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 
With Ms. Ekta Thakurel
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense  -    -    -    0.10  0.10 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.09)  (0.09)

With Kum. Deepali Bhatt
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense  -    -    -    -    -   

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.02)  (0.02)
Notes :

1	 The above disclosed transactions entered during the period of existence of related party relationship. The balances and 
transactions are not disclosed before existence of related party relationship and after cessation of related party relationship.

2	 The current year figures are excluding service tax.

3	 Expenses incurred towards public utilities services such as telephone and electricity charges have not been considered for 
related party transaction.

38 Basic and diluted earnings per share:
The computation of earnings per share is set out below 

(` in crore)
Particulars  2016-17  2015-16 
Amounts used as the numerators
Net Profit after tax  172.59  86.75 
Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders  172.59  86.75 
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.)  8 43 81 644  6 58 20 000 
Basic earnings per share of face value ` 10 each (In Rupees)  20.45  13.18 
Diluted earnings per share of face value ` 10 each (In Rupees)  20.45  13.18 

39 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (As Certified by the Management)

(` in crore)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2017

As at  
March 31, 2016

Contingent Liabilities

i) Guarantees to Banks and Financial Institutions on behalf of third parties  -    -   

ii) Claims against the Company not acknowledge as debt  0.64  0.48 

iii) Second loss credit enhancement for securitization of standard asset transactions
provided by third party

 13.36  22.09 

Commitments

iv) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
(net of advances)

 0.36  -   

v) Undrawn Committed Credit lines (Undisbursed amount of housing loans/ other
loans sanctioned)

 1,208.90  736.85 

F - 44



Reliance Home Finance Limited

Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2017

40 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 
2016 

(` in crore)

Particulars Specified Bank Notes  Other Notes   Total  

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016  0.03  *  0.03 

Add : Permitted Receipts  -    0.49  0.49 

Less : Permitted Payments  -    -   -

Less : Amount deposited in Bank  0.03  0.48  0.51 

Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016  -    0.01  0.01 

* ` 3,271

41	 Scheme of Arrangement between Company and Reliance Capital Limited (RCL)
The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on October 28, 2016 has approved a Scheme of Arrangement for 
demerger of Real Estate Lending Business of Reliance Capital Limited (RCL) into the Company with effect from April 1, 2017, 
the Appointed Date, subject to requisite approvals, including the sanction of National Company Law Tribunal. Upon the demerger 
getting approved, the Company shall issue and allot, at par, to all equity shareholders of RCL, 1 (One) fully paid Equity Share of 
the Company for every 1 (One) equity share of ` 10 each fully paid-up held in RCL. The Company will list its equity shares on 
the Stock Exchanges. 
For the year ended March 31, 2017 there is no impact on the financial statements of the Company on account of above 
Scheme.

42	 Scheme of Arrangement between Company and India Debt Management Private Limited (IDMPL)
The Scheme of Arrangement under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 between India Debt Management Private 
Limited (‘the Demerged Company’) and Reliance Home Finance Limited (‘the Company”) has been sanctioned by the National 
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide Order dated April 5, 2017 to acquire the “entire credit business” (‘Demerged 
Undertaking’) of the Demerged Company. The Scheme became effective on April 21, 2017 on filing with the Registrar of 
Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai with effect from March 31, 2016 i.e. Appointed Date. 
Pursuant  to the Scheme, the entire credit business of  India Debt Management Private Limited (IDMPL)  has been transferred 
to the Company.
Hence, in accordance with the Scheme:-
i. On Scheme becoming effective with effect from Appointed Date, the Company has recorded all the assets i.e. Investment

and Cash & Bank Balance aggregating to ` 240.60 crore and liabilities i.e. Provision for Diminution in the Value of Long 
Term Investments aggregating to ` 240.55 crore as appearing in the books of IDMPL’s  related to credit business at their 
respective book value as on Appointed Date. The net assets taken over include:

Assets / Liabilities Taken Over (` in crore)
Assets
Investments  240.55 
Less: Provision for Diminution in the Value of Long Term Investments  240.55  -   
Cash on Hand & Bank Balance with Banks  0.05 
Total Assets  0.05 
Liabilities 
Total -

ii	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of transfer and vesting of the undertaking of the IDMPL’s 
entire credit business, the Company will issue and allot, at par, to all equity shareholders of the IDMPL, whose name 
appears in the register of members of IDMPL as on the effective date, 94 (‘Ninety Four’) 8% Cumulative Non Convertible 
Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up for every one equity share of ` 10 each fully paid-up held by 
the equity shareholders of IDMPL. 

Accordingly 3,10,35,980, 8% Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up at 
par are to be allotted to the equity share holders of IDMPL. Pending issue and allotment of shares as at the balance sheet 
date ` 31.04 crore has been credited to Share Suspense Account. 

iii	 There are no  inter-company balances and transactions between the Company and IDMPL on appointed date.
iv	 The Company has recognised deferred tax asset amounting to ` 105.85 crore on the unabsorbed business losses pertaining 

to demerged undertaking.
v	 Pursuant to the Scheme approved by National Company Law Tribunal, the difference between value of assets and liabilities 

of IDMPL’s entire credit business and the value of the shares allotted to the shareholders of IDMPL, amounting to  
` 30.99 crore has been recorded as goodwill.
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vi	 As the financial statements for previous year ended March 31, 2016 have been already approved by the shareholders of 
the Company, the previous year accounts have not been reopened and all the relevant accounting entries with respect to 
the Scheme have been accounted during the current financial year.  

43	 Outstanding Future & Option as on March 31, 2017

Name of Option No. of contracts Units
Long Short

Futures     493   1 90 975  -   
 (2 859)  (2 16 225)  (-) 

Put option    1 272    12 525    82 875 
 (241)  (-)  (18 075)

Call option    1 654   1 08 000    16 050 
 (-)  (-)  (-) 

Figures in bracket indicate previous year figures. 
44	 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), the Company is under obligation to incur ` 2.04 crore (Previous Year 
` 1.39 crore) and has incurred the same in cash, being  2% of the average net profit during the three immediately preceding 
financial years, calculated in the manner as stated in the Act towards Corporate Social Responsibility through the non-profit 
centre(s) engaged in the provision of health care and education for the purpose other than construction / acquisition of asset.

45	 After considering the losses suffered by the credit business of IDMPL, being the business acquired on demerger of IDMPL, 
and the accounting of such losses and of corresponding provisions made by IDMPL for the year ended March 31, 2017, the 
Company is advised that no income tax is payable both as per normal computation of income, and the MAT computation. Hence, 
no provision is considered in the books of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017.

46	 The Board of Directors have recommended a dividend of 5 per cent (` 0.50 per equity share) for the year subject to the 
approval of the members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In terms of revised Accounting Standard 
(AS) 4 ‘Contingencies and Events Occurring after the Balance sheet date’ as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs through 
Amendments to the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment, Rules 2016 dated March 30, 2016, Company has not 
accounted for proposed dividend as a liabilities as at March 31, 2017. Accordingly, the proposed dividend of ` 5.79 crore and 
tax thereon ` 1.18 crore are not recognised as liability in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017.

47	 During the year, the Company has received debenture application money of ̀  2,987.62 crore directly and ̀  66.36 crore through 
ASBA process in terms of Shelf Prospectus and Tranche 1 Prospectus both dated December 15, 2016 (“Prospectus”) of public 
issue of “Secured and Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures” (NCD). The NCD issue was open from December 
22, 2016 to December 23, 2016 and the Company has allotted NCD amounting to ` 3,053.98 crore on January 3, 2017. 
NCDs were listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited on January 6, 2017. As on March 31, 2017 the 
proceeds have been utilised as per the Objects of the Issue as under:  

Sr. No. Objects of the Issue Amount utilised

i) For the purpose of onward lending, financing, and for repayment/pre payment of interest and
principal of existing borrowings of the Company

` 3,053.98 crore  
i.e. 100%

ii) General corporate purpose -
48	 During the year, the Company had reported to National Housing Bank (NHB) a fraud in disbursal of housing loans amounting to 

` 1.95 crore. As on March 31, 2017, the entire amount has been written off by the Company.
49	 Previous year figures has been regrouped /reclassified wherever necessary.

The figures for current year includes figures of Credit Business of India Debt Management Private Limited (IDMPL) which is 
demerged with the Company with effect from March 31, 2016 i.e. the Appointed Date and therefore to that extent not strictly 
comparable to that of previous year’s figures.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 101720W Directors

Padmanabh Vora
Deena Mehta 
Gautam Doshi 
Amit Bapna

Lalit R. Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership No: 103418

Executive Director & CEO
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Ravindra Sudhalkar 
Sandip Parikh
Parul Jain

Mumbai
Dated: April 24, 2017

Mumbai
Dated: April 24, 2017
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